
 
Regular and Closed Council Meeting Agenda 

for Monday, March 11, 2024, at 1:00 p.m.  
to be held in Council Chambers at the,  

 Municipal Office at 4512 – 46 Street, Olds, AB  
 
This Regular Council Meeting will be conducted in Council Chambers at the Municipal Office at 4512 – 46 
Street in Olds, with the public body present at meeting location and will be live streamed out via the 
Town of Olds website. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
 
 A.) ADDED ITEM(s)         
  
 B.) ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
2. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES        
Page 2  2A) Adoption of previous council meeting minutes 

• Regular Council Meeting Minutes – February 26, 2024 
        

3. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Page 7  3A)  Delegation: MP Earl Dreeshen 
 
4. BYLAWS 
 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
Page 8  5A) Municipal Area Partnership Dissolution 
Page 10  5B) Committee of the Whole Policy Recommendations 
Page 20  5C) RCMP 2024/2025 Town of Olds Municipal Policing Priorities 
 
6. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
Page 23  6A) Chief Administrative Officer Report  
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION 
Page 26  7A) Correspondence and Information 
 
8.    ADJOURNMENT  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION: 
Media Scrum: any questions arising from the media can be sent to communications@olds.ca and they will be forwarded on to the person 
addressed. 
 
CLOSED SESSION INFORMATION:  
When Council goes into a CLOSED SESSION, for continued participation in the virtual Council meeting: stay online in the live stream meeting 
platform, and the meeting stream will be replaced by a graphic and music will play. When the music stops, the meeting is reconvening.  
 
If you choose to shut down your live stream, watch the Town of Olds social media feeds where the reconvening time will be posted. The social 
media feeds can also be found at the bottom of the homepage on the Town of Olds website. 
 

mailto:communications@olds.ca


 
PRIOR TO ADOPTION 

 
Minutes of the Town of Olds Regular and Closed Council meeting held on Monday, February 26, 2024, at 
1:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, at the Municipal Office at 4512 – 46 Street in Olds, with the public 
body present at meeting location and was live streamed out.  
 
PRESENT – ELECTED OFFICIALS:  
In the Chair, Mayor Judy Dahl  
Councillor Wanda Blatz, Councillor James Cummings, Councillor Dan Daley, Councillor Harvey Walsh, 
Councillor Heather Ryan, and Councillor Darren Wilson 
 
ABSENT– ELECTED OFFICIALS:  
 
PRESENT for the Regular meeting of Council – STAFF:  
Brent Williams, Chief Administrative Officer; Justin Andrew, Director of Protective Services, Sgt. Paul 
Wright, Senior Community Peace Officer, Sheena Linderman, Director of Corporate Services and Marcie 
McKinnon, Legislative Clerk 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor Dahl called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 A.) ADDED ITEM(s)         
Mayor Dahl requested one piece of correspondence be added under item 7A) Correspondence and 
Information.  (Will be held with the minutes.) 
 
 B.) ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
Moved by Councillor Daley, “to accept the Council agenda for the Monday, February 26, 2024, Regular 
Council meeting, as amended.”   
Motion Carried 24-71 
 
2. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES        
2A) Regular Council Meeting Minutes  
Mayor Dahl confirmed consensus to adopt the: 

• Regular Council Meeting Minutes – February 12, 2024 
The minutes were adopted as presented by consensus of Council. 
Motion Carried 24-72 

        
3. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS  
3A)  Delegation: MLA Nathan Cooper 
Mr. Cooper was in attendance and spoke to council on the upcoming new session, budget, and ongoing 
challenges for the provincial government, and fielded questions from Council. 
 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that Mr. Cooper be thanked for attending the February 26th Regular Council 
Meeting and speaking to Council.” 
Motion Carried 24-73 
 
3B) RCMP Quarterly Report 
S/Sgt. Wright and Sgt. Poon were present in  council chambers and gave presentation to council as per 
the quarterly report contained in the agenda package. 
 
 

2

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for February 26, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 
 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that Council accepts the Royal Canadian Mounted Police quarterly report as 
presented.” 
Motion Carried 24-74 
 
4. BYLAWS 
4A) Bylaw 2024-05 Animal Bylaw  
Director Andrew and Sgt. Paul Wright, Senior Community Peace Officer gave a brief presentation on the 
Animal Bylaw, including key areas of focus such as Stray and Abandoned Animals, Animal 
Licenses/Number of Animals per household, Private Animal Control and Animals in prohibited areas.  
 
Moved by Councillor Daley, “that Council give second reading to the Animal Bylaw 2024-05, as 
presented.”  
 
Moved by Councillor Daley, “that council amend bylaw 2024-05 paragraph 60 to a three (3) dog 
maximum per household with a permit option to allow for over three (3) dogs per household when 
circumstances permit  such as fostering/abandonment/litters and the permit must be approved by 
Municipal Enforcement.” 
Motion Carried 24-75 
 
Moved by Councillor Wilson, “that Council moves into closed session in accordance with Section 197(2)  
of the Municipal Government Act at 2:27 p.m. to discuss matters exempt from disclosure under Item #1 
FOIP Section 17 – Disclosure harmful to personal privacy with CAO Williams, Director Andrew, Sgt. 
Wright, and Marcie McKinnon to remain in attendance.” 
Motion Carried 24-76 
 
The gallery was cleared, and the live stream was paused.  
Mayor Dahl recessed the meeting at 2:28 p.m. 
Mayor Dahl reconvened the meeting at 2:34 p.m. 
 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that the meeting reconvenes to the regular Council meeting at 2:51 p.m.” 
Motion Carried 24-77 
 
The gallery was opened, and the live stream was resumed. 
 
Mayor Dahl noted that there will be no change to paragraph 53.  

 
Moved by Councillor Cummings, “that paragraph 49 be removed from bylaw 2024-05.” 
Motion Carried 24-78 
 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that paragraph 66 be amended from six (6) to three (3) dogs in bylaw 2024-
05.” 
Motion Carried 24-79 
 
Councillor Daley agreed to friendly amendment to his original motion on the floor; council voted on a 
second reading for bylaw 2024-05 as amended. 
Motion Carried 24-80  
 
Sgt. Paul Wright left the meeting at 3:00 p.m. 
Director Linderman joined the meeting at 3:05 p.m.  
Director Andrew left the meeting at 3:06 p.m. 

3

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for February 26, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
4B)  Bylaw 2024-12 Land Use Bylaw 01-23 Amendment 
 5200 58 Street – Rezoning from UR to R4 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that Bylaw No. 2024-12 (Amendment to Land Use Bylaw 01-23) be given 
first reading as presented.” 
Motion Carried 24-81 
 
Moved by Councillor Cummings, “that Monday, March 25, 2024, at 1:00pm in Council Chambers at 4512 
46 Street in Olds, be set as the date, time, and place for a Public Hearing on Bylaw No. 2024-12.” 
Motion Carried 24-82 
 
4C) Bylaw 2024-13 Land Use Bylaw 01-23 Amendment  

Secondary Suites – Amending to allow in duplexes and as detached suites in R2 
Moved by Councillor Wilson, “that Bylaw No. 2024-13 (Amendment to Land Use Bylaw 01-23) be given 
first reading as presented.” 
Motion Carried 24-83 
 
Moved by Councillor Walsh, “that Monday, March 25, 2024, at 1:00pm in Council Chambers at 4512 46 
Street in Olds, be set as the date, time, and place for a Public Hearing on Bylaw No. 2024-13.” 
Motion Carried 24-84 
 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
5A) Olds Fibre Ltd. Interest Forgiveness Request 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that interest in the amount of $80,496.32 that being the Town’s portion of 
the interest on the Olds Fibre Ltd. promissory note be forgiven for the April 17, 2024, loan payment.” 
Motion Carried 24-85 
 
Director Linderman left the meeting at 3:16 p.m.  
 
5B) Council Appointment to Community Futures Central Alberta Board 
Moved by Councillor Cummings, “that Council appoint Darren Wilson to the Community Futures Central 
Alberta Board effective February 26, 2024, for a term ending at the Annual Organizational meeting of 
the Town of Olds held in October of 2025.” 
Motion Carried 24-86 
 
6. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
6A) Chief Administrative Officer Report  
CAO Williams spoke on the following: 
 - Reviewed the Action item list 
 - AB Municipalities Drought Webinar takes place next week 
 - Snow clearing; the purple route will start on 4:00 am on Tuesday, February 27, 2024   
 - Discovery of several water leaks using the new leak technology 
 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that the Chief Administrative Officer Report, be accepted for information.” 
Motion Carried 24-87 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION 
7A) Correspondence and Information 
Moved by Councillor Daley, “that the Correspondence and Information Report ending February 26, 
2024, be received for information, as amended.”  (added correspondence will be held with minutes.) 

4

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for February 26, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 
 
Motion Carried 24-88 
 
8. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL, BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 
8A) Reports from Council, Boards, Commission and Committees 
Moved by Councillor Wilson, “that the Reports from Council, Boards, Commission and Committees, 
ending February 26, 2024, be received for information.” 
 
Council members provided highlights on council meetings, committee meetings and events they 
attended or participated in, since their last report in January.  
 
Motion Carried 24-89 
 
9. CLOSED SESSION  
 
Mayor Dahl provided directions to online meeting participants on Council moving in and out of closed 
session.  
 
Moved by Councillor Wilson, “that Council moves into closed session in accordance with Section 197(2)  
of the Municipal Government Act at 3:34 p.m. to discuss matters exempt from disclosure under Item #1 
FOIP Section 17 – Disclosure harmful to personal privacy and Item #2 FOIP Section 16 Disclosure harmful 
to business interests of a third party, with CAO Williams, Director Adrian Pedro and Mr. James Crozier 
and Marcie McKinnon to remain in attendance.” 
Motion Carried 24-90 
 
The gallery was cleared, and the live stream was paused.  
Director Adrian Pedro and Mr. James Crozier left the meeting at 3:59 p.m. 
 
Moved by Councillor Daley, “that the meeting reconvenes to the regular Council meeting at 4:17 p.m.” 
Motion Carried 24-91 
 
The gallery was opened, and the live stream was resumed. 

 
10. RISE AND REPORT  
 
Moved by Councillor Blatz, “that Council accept the CAO’s report on the Mountain View Regional Water  
Services Commission(MVRWSC) matter; and direct the CAO to prepare a letter for mayor signature to  
MVRWSC requesting further cooperation. ” 
Motion Carried 24-92 
 
Moved by Councillor Ryan, “that Council appoint Debbie Bennett, Donna Harding, and Patrick  
Martens to the Council Remuneration Review Committee effective February 26, 2024.” 
Motion Carried 24-93 
 
Moved by Councillor Walsh, “that Council charge the Council Remuneration Review Committee  
to report back to Council on or/before the May 27, 2024, regular council meeting with 
recommendations on the policy 106C on Council remuneration and benefits to be established for  
members of Council effective once the Council is elected in 2025.” 
Motion Carried 24-94 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT  

5

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Town of Olds Council Meeting Minutes for February 26, 2024 
Page 5 of 5 
 
Mayor Dahl adjourned the meeting at 4:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 
Judy Dahl,       Brent Williams, 
Mayor        Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
These minutes were approved on the ____ day of March 2024. 
 
 
 
 

6

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Delegation: MP Earl Dreeshen 

Request for Decision 

Delegation: Mr. Earl Dreeshen MP for Red Deer- Mountain View County 

March 11, 2024   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Mr. Dreeshen be thanked for attending the March 11th Regular Council Meeting. 
 

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance.  
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships.  
Sound fiscal practices are balanced with a commitment to prioritizing value for our citizens. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY- N/A 

BACKGROUND 

Mr. Dreeshen was initially elected to represent the electoral district of Red Deer in the 2008 Canadian 
federal election and re-elected with an increased majority in 2011. Ahead of the 2015 election, Red Deer 
was split almost in half ahead electorally and Dreeshen is now the MP for Red Deer- Mountain View. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
Town of Olds Council is pleased to have Earl Dreeshen attend March 11th Regular Council Meeting and 
provide an update on federal matters concerning our Town and region.  

ATTACHMENTS – n/a 

 
 

CAO Review: Brent Williams Date:  March 5, 2024 

 
 

7

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Council Committees 

Request for Decision 

Dissolution of Municipal Area Partnership (MAP) Committee 

March 11, 2024    
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Town of Olds Council agree to the dissolution of the Municipal Area Partnership (MAP) 
Committee and that the remaining funds of $23,917.21 in the MAP account be distributed based on 
the same ratio contributions that were made to the fund.  
 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 

1. Municipal Government Act 
2. Town of Olds Bylaws & Policies 

BACKGROUND  

The Town of Olds, being a member of the Municipal Area Partnership (MAP) committee, received a 
correspondence from Mountain View County mid-February expressing their desire to step back from the 
Municipal Area Partnership (MAP) committee. The reasons for this decision are outlined in the attached 
correspondence from Reeve Aalbers. Council is being asked to consider if they support dissolution of the 
MAP committee and distribution of the funds as proposed.   
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☒ Operating  ☐ Capital ☐ Not Applicable 
Details: Would remove one committee from Council Committee Appointments. 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
The Town of Olds values the work that MAP has done over its many years and looks forward to new ways 
to collaborate with our municipal neighbors in the Mountain View region.  

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Mountain View County letter dated February 14, 2024, RE: Municipal Area Partnership (MAP) 
Committee 
 

CAO Review: Brent Williams Date:  February 05, 2024 

 
 

8

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



10 – 1408 Twp Rd 320, Didsbury AB, T0M 0W0
(403) 335-3311

www.mountainviewcounty.com

February 14, 2024

MAP Committee Members
Via e-mail

Subject: Municipal Area Partnership Committee

Mountain View County council would like to inform our partners that we have made the decision to
step back from the Municipal Area Partnership (MAP) committee. This decision comes after careful
consideration and evaluation of the committee's purpose and goals mainly being to discuss regional
opportunities, build regional relationships and reduce divisiveness, and apply for intermunicipal grants
and other funding opportunities. It has become apparent that regional initiatives are not a priority for
our MAP members and therefore, the County would rather focus our efforts on our Inter-municipal
Collaboration Committees (ICC) to further relationships one on one with our partners.

County Council would like to express our gratitude to all members of the MAP committee and their
respective Councils for their dedication and efforts in service to our community. While the County will
no longer participate in MAP, the spirit of collaboration and partnership that it sought to foster will
continue to guide our municipal initiatives.

Moving forward, we remain committed to engaging with stakeholders, fostering community
development, and addressing the needs of our residents through our ICCs. Please be reminded that
applications to the County’s Inter-municipal Collaboration Capital Reserve fund (Policy 8006), can be
made through the ICCs. This policy also encourages a regional approach to capital projects and that an
application brought forward for a capital project from multiple urban municipalities may access a
higher capital contribution more than the $1 million per project threshold.

The County suggests that the remaining funds of $23,917.21 in the MAP account held by the County
be distributed based on the same ratio contributions were made to the fund.  The County contributed
40% of the funds and we suggest that the County retain $9,566.88 and distribute the remaining funds
to MAP.  We will wait for the direction of the remaining MAP members if there is another suggestion
for the funds. Please do not hesitate to reach out if you have any questions or require further clarification
regarding this decision.

Thank you for your understanding and cooperation.

Sincerely,

Angela Aalbers
Reeve

AA/lmc

9

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
CotW Policy Recommendations 

Request for Decision 

Committee of the Whole Policy Recommendations 

March 11, 2024    
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council move that the following policies have been reviewed with no material changes needed:  
1. Policy: 107C Elected Official Member Appointments 
2. Policy: 108C Civic Recognition 
3. Policy: 109C Departing Members of Council 
4. Policy: 114C Proclamations 
5. Policy: 124C Death of Current or Former Member 

 
STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 

1. Municipal Government Act 
2. Town of Olds Bylaws & Policies 

BACKGROUND  

The Committee of the Whole has diligently reviewed and assessed the aforementioned policies during 
its March meeting. After careful consideration, it is the collective recommendation of the CotW that 
these policies be presented to the council for approval without any significant alterations. These policies 
stand as a testament to our commitment to effective governance and adherence to best practices within 
our organization. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
As part of our commitment to good governance, the Town regularly reviewing policies to ensure they 
align with our values, standards, and evolving community needs.  

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Policy: 107C Elected Official Member Appointments 
2. Policy: 108C Civic Recognition 
3. Policy: 109C Departing Members of Council 
4. Policy: 114C Proclamations 
5. Policy: 124C Death of Current or Former Member 

 
 

CAO Review: Brent Williams Date:  March 5, 2024 

 

10

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Page 1 of 2 

POLICY #107C 
4512 – 46 Street, Olds, AB Canada T4H 1R5 
T 403-556-6981 www.olds.ca 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Policy Title: Elected Official Appointments 

Policy Number: 107C 

Approval: Town Council  

Review Date: March, 11, 2024, Motion # 24-xxx 
Review Date: August 23, 2021 Motion 21-336 
Review Date: June 9, 2020 Motion 20-213 
Review Date: October 8, 2018 Motion 18-389 
Review Date: October 24, 2011 Motion 11-330 
Approved Date: August 22, 2011 Motion 11-255 
 
Supersedes Policy No.: Council Committee and Appointment Policy 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Policy Statement:  
Members of Olds Town Council are appointed to Authorities, Boards, Commissions or Committees. 
 
Purpose: 
To provide for the appointment of Elected Officials to Authorities, Boards, Commissions or 
Committees. 
 
Definitions: 

1. “Ad Hoc or Advisory” means a committee with a specific task or objective and dissolved 
after the completion of the task or achievement of the objective. This committee has a 
beginning and an end. 
 

2. “Authority, Board, Commission or Committee” or “(ABCC)” means a committee to which 
members of the public and elected officials are appointed to at the Town of Olds annual 
Organizational Meeting, and/or as required throughout the year. The ABCC’s have been 
granted the authority to bring committee recommendations to Council for decision. 
 

3. “Elected Official Committee” means an Ad Hoc, Advisory or Standing Committee, or any 
other body established by Council. An Elected Official Committee does not include an 
Assessment Review Board established under section 454 or a Subdivision and 
Development Appeal Board established under section 627. 
 

4. “Standing Committee” means a Committee, formed to do its assigned work on an 
ongoing basis. This committee does not have an end date and it is formed to discuss 
items specific to municipal functions. (I.e. Standing Committee on Transportation)  

 
Standards: 
Elected Official Appointments 

 

11

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024

http://www.olds.ca/


Policy 107C Elected Official Appointments 

Page 2 of 2 

 
5. Official appointments will be made annually at the Town Council Organizational Meeting 

and/or as required throughout the year.  
 

6. Each Councillor is to submit an expression of interest pertaining to annual appointments 
to Authorities, Boards and Commissions to the Mayor by the end of September. This 
process will be the same during an election year. 

 
7. Appointment of Elected Official Members to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, or 

Committees, is coordinated by the Mayor. 
 

8. Should there be interest from more than one Elected Official Member to any particular 
Authority, Board, Commission, or Committee, appointment to said ABCC will be voted 
upon at the Organizational Meeting. 

 
9. A request for decision for Elected Official appointments will be prepared for presentation 

at the Organizational Meeting, held in accordance with the Municipal Government Act. 
 

10. All members of Council shall attend training and orientation session(s) as soon as possible 
following their election to Council, in order to fulfill their commitment to Authorities, 
Boards, Commissions, and Committees.  

 
11. Within reasonable means, alternates appointed should attend training and the Annual 

General Meeting of an Authority, Board, Commission, or Committee. 
 

Elected Official Role 
12. Elected Officials appointed to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, or local Committees 

containing members of the  public, if possible: 
• An elected official who is assigned a local committee chair role shall work with said 

committee to train a public member to take over the role of chair on the ABCC as 
soon as possible; and 

• Shall avoid making motions on subjects likely to be presented to Council for further 
review. 

 
13. Elected Officials appointed ensure that the activities of the committee do not exceed the 

authority of the committee granted by Council as defined by bylaw or terms of reference. 
 
14. An Elected Official on a Committee shall not be considered as an advocate for the interests 

of the committee and shall not be expected to present issues or recommendations to the 
receiving body on behalf of the Committee. 

 
15. Elected Official members have fiduciary duties to both the Town and the body to which 

they were appointed and must be cognizant of the “hat” they are wearing and where their 
duty of loyalty and fidelity lies. Elected Officials must act in the best interests of the town 
when sitting at the Council table, and conversely, must act in the best interests of the 
Authority, Board, Commission or Committee appointed to.  

 

12

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Page 1 of 2 

POLICY #108C 
4512 – 46 Street, Olds, AB Canada T4H 1R5 
T 403-556-6981 F 403-559-6537 
www.olds.ca 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Policy Title: Civic Recognition 

Policy Number: 108C 

Approval: Town Council  

Review Date: March 11, 2024, Motion 24-xxxx 
Review Date July 12, 2021, Motion 21-286 
Review Date: September 14, 2020, Motion 20-330  
 (was renumbered to 108C) 
Approved Date: February 27, 2006 
Supersedes Policy No.: Rewrite of Policy 102C Council Promotions & 
 Policy 108C Promotion and Public Relations 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Policy Statement:  
Council acknowledges the importance of recognizing significant accomplishments, initiatives, or 
programs which enhance the community spirit and positively impact the Town of Olds and its citizens. 
 
Purpose: 
To provide general criteria regarding recognizing significant accomplishments, initiatives, or programs 
within the Town of Olds. 
 
Standards: 

1. This Council policy applies to all Recognitions performed by, or on behalf of, council. 
 

2. This council policy does not apply to recognitions performed by individual members of council 
on their own accord. 

 
3. Individuals, Organizations or Administration may be recognized for achievements in the 

following areas: 
• local national or international awards in the area of arts, science, and academia 
• dates of local, national, or international significance; or 
• significant achievement in advancing initiatives relating to a Town of Olds or Council 

initiative, or program; or 
• significant achievement, exemplary action, or extraordinary commitment to 

improving life in Olds and the lives of the citizens; or 
• Significant anniversary means a minimum of 65 years, and any factor of 5 thereafter. 

 
4. Organizations and administration may be recognized for significant anniversaries or milestones. 

 
5. Recognitions are typically scheduled at the beginning of a council meeting in accordance with 

the order of business contained within the procedural bylaw unless otherwise arranged. 

 

13

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024

http://www.olds.ca/


Policy 108C Civic Recognition 
 

  

Page 2 of 2 

General Criteria 
 

6. Council and/or Administration shall not recognize matters that are: 
• of Religious nature 
• of individual conviction  
• with no direct relationship to the Town of Olds 
• that are for profit purposes 
• attempting to influence government policy  
• that are contrary to Town policies or Bylaws. 

 
7. Any Resident or Organizations wishing to receive recognition from Council may submit their 

request in writing to the Mayor’s Office. Requests for recognition are to be received in writing 
and the date by which the item is required and must contain the specifics.  

 
8. To be eligible for recognition from the Council the recipient of the recognition must live within 

the Town of Olds municipal boundary.  
 
9. Administration shall consider and work with any citizen or group to identify possible opportunities 

for forms of recognition not addressed in this policy. 
 
10. Whenever possible the Mayor or Deputy Mayor will make the recognition presentation in person 

and will be coordinated by Councils’ Executive Support and Legislative Clerk. If attendance is not 
possible, Executive Support or Legislative Clerk will arrange for the certificate to be mailed out or 
picked up.  

 
OTHER RECOGNITION 

11. On occasion, Council may deem it appropriate to recognize individuals or groups for reasons not 
identified elsewhere in this policy. Council may by resolution determine that they should 
recognize in some fashion as specified in the resolution, a person, a group, or other body for some 
reason as Council determines if deserving of recognition.  

 

14

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Page 1 of 2 

POLICY #109C  
4512 – 46 Street, Olds, AB Canada T4H 1R5 
T 403-556-6981 F 403-559-6537 
www.olds.ca 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Policy Title:  Recognition of Departing Elected Officials  
 
Policy Number: 109C 

Approval: Town Council 

Review Date:  March, 11, 2024, Motion 24-xxx 
Review Date:  September 14, 2020, Motion #20-331 
Review Date:   March 14, 2016, Motion # 16-99 
Review Date:  Council amendment April 2011 
Approved:   Council approval November 2007 
 

Review Date:     January 13, 2020, Motion 20-13 
Supersedes Policy No.: New 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Policy Statement:  
To recognize the service of Elected Officials as they leave office.  
 
Purpose: 
To define how Departing Elected Officials shall be recognized with a formal ceremony and/or gift 
presentation by the current Members of Council, supported by Administration. 
 
Definitions: 
“Departing Elected Official” means an elected official that is not returning to Town of Olds Council 
whether it be, not running for re-election, an electoral defeat or resignation. 
 
“Reception” means a social gathering for the purpose of extending formal recognition of service.    
 
Standards: 

1. Council will recognize the service and dedication of Departing Elected Officials. 
 

2. The Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) or designate is responsible for this policy. 
 

3. Recognition of Departing Elected Officials shall be at the first Regular Meeting of Council after 
their departure. 

 
4. The CAO will host a Reception for departing Elected Officials where they shall receive:  

• a letter under the Mayor’s signature;  
• their “name plate”; and   
• the Council “Service Recognition” gift. 

 

15

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024

http://www.olds.ca/


Policy 109C Recognition of Departing Elected Officials  
  

Page 2 of 2 

 
5. When a Mayor is sworn in, they are presented with a gavel that has been engraved. When the 

Mayor leaves their seat, the years of service engraving will be completed, and the gavel will then 
be prepared for presentation to the departing Mayor.    
 

6. Service Recognition  
• Upon completion of a first term, an Elected Official will receive a gift of $100.00. 
• Upon completion of a second term, an Elected Official will receive a gift of $320.00. 
• Upon completion of a third term, an Elected Official will receive a gift of $720.00. 
• Upon completion of a fourth term, an Elected Official will receive a gift of $1,200.00. 
• Upon completion of five or more terms, an Elected Official will receive a gift of 

$2,000.00 being maximum amount allotment.    
 

7. Council reserves the right to withhold any form of recognition if an Elected Official is relieved of 
their office.  

 
8. The Chief Administrative Officer reserves the right to determine if any form of (pro-rated) 

recognition is granted if an Elected Official resigns.  
 

16

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Page 1 of 1 

POLICY #114C 
4512 – 46 Street, Olds, AB Canada T4H 1R5 
T 403-556-6981 F 403-559-6537 
www.olds.ca 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Policy Title: Proclamations 

Policy Number: 114C 

Approval: Town Council 

Review Date: March 11, 2024, Motion No 24-xx 
Amended Date: February 13, 2023, Motion No. 23-59 
Amended Date: January 11, 2020, Motion No. 20-11 
Approved Date: January 28, 2013, Motion No. 13-23 
 
Supersedes Policy No.: New 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Policy Statement:  
The Town of Olds Council shall not make or authorize a formal endorsement or proclamation for any 
event, day, message, interest, cause, or activity, not specifically related to town-sponsored, municipal 
purposes or operations, regardless of the merit of such. 
 
Purpose: 
This policy is intended to guide council and administration in dealing with requests for proclamations. 
The making of such proclamations regarding non-Town matters is not within the legislative prerogative 
or purpose of the Town, regardless of how worthy such matters may be in and of themselves. 
 
Standards: 
 

1. This policy applies to all proclamation requests received by the Town of Olds. 
 

2. The Office of the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) is responsible for proclamation requests. 
 

3. Any requests for a Proclamation received by the Town shall be directed to the Chief 
Administrative Officer or designate. 

 
4. The Chief Administrative Officer or designate will inform the requesting group or  

individual of this policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

17

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024

http://www.olds.ca/


Page 1 of 2 

POLICY #124C 
4512 – 46 Street, Olds, AB Canada T4H 1R5 
T 403-556-6981 F 403-559-6537 
www.olds.ca 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Policy Title:  Civic Recognition on the Death of a Current or  
  Former Elected Officials 
  
Policy Number: 124C 

Approval: Town Council 

Review Date:     March 11, 2024, Motion 24-xx 
Review Date:     January 13, 2020, Motion 20-13 
 
Supersedes Policy No.: New 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Policy Statement:  
Having served the Town of Olds (the “Town”) as an elected member of Council, upon their death former 
and current Elected Officials should be acknowledged by the Town. 
 
If a former Elected Official has held political office with multiple orders of Government, precedence will 
be given to the policy or procedure of the federal order of Government (as applicable).  
 
Purpose: 
The purpose of this policy is to provide clarity on how the Town will acknowledgement the death of a 
current or former Elected Official.  
 
Definitions:  
In this Council Policy:  
“Elected Officials” means a person duly elected to Council, including Mayors and Councillors, past and 
present. 
 
Standards: 
1. This policy applies to current and former Elected Officials upon their passing.  

 
2. The Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) or his delegate is responsible for administering this policy 

within the terms and conditions established.   
 

3. This policy does not address acknowledgements to be provided by the Town to individuals from 
other levels of government, or recognized leaders who have made contributions to the Town of 
Olds in fields such as arts, music, sports, public service, volunteerism, etc., or otherwise held a 
position of authority. 
 

 

18

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024

http://www.olds.ca/


 
 

  

Page 2 of 2 

4. Upon receipt of notification of death of a current or former Elected Official, OCAO will disseminate 
this information to appropriate groups as follows: Mayor’s Office, Leadership Team, and 
Communications. 
 

5. Town Council will acknowledge the death at the first Council meeting following the 
commemorative service, or at another appropriate time should the service be scheduled at a 
later date.  
 

6. Where exceptions to this policy may be warranted, the CAO will provide recommendations 
including all financial considerations to the Elected Officials for approval.  

 

19

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Delegation: Municipal Policing Priorities 

Request for Decision 

Municipal Policing Priorities 2024/ 2025 

March 11, 2024   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council approve the Town of Olds- Municipal Policing Priorities for 2024/2025 as: 
1. Crime Reduction (Specifically Property & Person Crimes) 
2. Community Engagement- Be Clear, Accountable, and Transparent and encourage citizens to 

report all crimes. 
3. Mental Health and Violence in Relationships- Enhance awareness and education. 
4. Promote Road Safety. 

 

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance.  
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships.  

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY-  

Municipal Government Act 

BACKGROUND 

The Town of Olds provides direction annually to the Olds RCMP Detachment via our policing priorities. 
At March 4th Committee of the Whole Meeting, committee members discussed and directed these 
updated priorities come forward.  

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
The Town’s relationship with the RCMP is one of its strongest and most important. Through establishing 
these annual priorities, both parties further our shared responsibility of keeping Olds safe and 
prosperous. 

ATTACHMENTS  

1. RCMP Correspondence  
2. Town of Olds Draft Correspondence 

 
 

CAO Review: Brent Williams Date:  March 5, 2024 

 
 

20

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Security ClassiticaticnlDesignatjon

Royal Canadian Gendarmerie royale
Mounted Police du Canada

NCO i/c RCMP
Olds RCMP Detachment
5110 -65 Avenue
Olds, Alberta
T4H 1L8

Mayor Judy DAHL
Town of Olds
4512-46 Street
Olds, Alberta
T4H 1R5

February 22, 2024

Dear Mayor DAHL,

Annual Performance Plan - 2024 1 2025
Town of Olds - Municipal Policing Priorities

Your File

Our File

In preparation of the 2024/2025 Annual Performance Plan for the Olds Detachment, I
am requesting that the Town of Olds please provide me with their policing priorities for the
coming year Last year (2023 / 2024), the Town identified their policing priorities as:

1, Crime Reduction

2. Community Engagment - Be Clear Accountable and Transparent

3. Mental Health and Violence in Relationships - Enhance Awareness and Education

4. Enhance Road Safety

If possible, can you please reply to my request for your policing priorities by March 27,
2024, as my intent is to have the entire 2023/2024 Annual Performance Plan completed by

April 1, 2024. If you have any questions or require further clarfication on my request, please
contact me at (403) 556-3324 or warren.wright©rcmp-grc.gc.ca.

Further I am planning on hosting my annual Olds RCMP Town Hall in Olds on a date in

the week of June 24 to 28, 2024. Once the specific date is finalized, I will communicate with

the Town requesting assistance in advertising on the social media

Olds RCMP Detachment
(403) 556-3324

Page 1 of 1

Canadi

21

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



4512 - 46 Street, Olds, AB. T4H 1R5     

admin@olds.ca  P.403.556.6981  F.403.556.6537     olds.ca  

 

 
 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
 
 
March 5, 2024 
 
Staff Sergeant Warren Wright 
Detachment Commander - Olds    
Royal Canadian Mounted Police  
5110 65 Avenue 

Olds, AB T4H 1L8 

RE: Police Priorities for 2024/2025 

Dear Warren, 

Thank you for providing the opportunity for Council input regarding policing priorities for 2024/25. 

As request, here are our top priorities:  

1. Crime Reduction (Specifically Property & Person Crimes) 

2. Community Engagement: Be Clear, Accountable, and Transparent, and encourage 

citizens to report all crimes. 

3. Mental Health and Violence in Relationships: Enhance awareness and education. 

4. Promote Road Safety. 

Should you have any questions related to the priorities as outlined above, please reach out. 

Once again, our Council appreciates your proactive approach to addressing policing in our 

community.  Please know council members are here to support you.   

With Gratitude, 
 

 
 
Her Worship, 
Judy Dahl 
Mayor - Town of Olds   
cc:  

Mayor’s Read Board 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

22

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024

mailto:admin@olds.ca
http://www.olds.ca/


 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Chief Administrative Officer Report 

Request for Decision 

Chief Administrative Officer Report 

March 11, 2024   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Chief Administrative Officer Report be accepted for information. 

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our residents and town staff actively communicate and engage with us through open dialogue. 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 
Sound fiscal practices are balanced with a commitment to prioritizing value for our citizens. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 

Municipal Government Act Division 9, Part 6, Section 208(1)  

BACKGROUND  

One of the Chief Administrative Officer’s responsibilities is to advise and inform the council on the 
operations and affairs of the municipality. CAO Williams will present his monthly report to council for 
their information.  
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 
Details: 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
A Chief Administrative Officer’s responsibility is to advise and inform the council on the operations and 
affairs of the municipality. The CAO Verbal Report is meant to provide information to Council that is 
more routine in nature and does not require a decision from Council.  

ATTACHMENTS  

1. Action Items 

2. February Report a Problem Summary 

 
 

CAO Review: Brent Williams Date:  March 5, 2024 

 
 

23

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Number Item Date Added Status Note
2023-06 Research changes to approvals in Direct Control Districts 08-May Incomplete LUB Amendemnt TBD
2023-15 Advertise Reporting Procedure for Bylaw Complaints 02-Oct Complete
2023-16 Compensation and Benefits Review Presentation 02-Oct Complete
2023-17 Housing Incentive Policy Update 02-Oct Complete
2023-18 Vapour Testing Report 02-Oct Complete
2023-20 Onboarding Procedure 02-Oct Incomplete
2023-21 Professional Development Procedure 02-Oct Incomplete
2023-22 Residential Incentive Changes 02-Oct Complete
2023-23 Advertise ME Complaint process to the public 13-Nov Complete
2023-24 Bylaw officer to SLR for discussions 13-Nov Complete
2023-25 Off site levy impacts on land costs 13-Nov Complete
2023-26 Provide Utility Bill Reduction Options 13-Nov Complete
2023-27 Prepare a summary of carbon tax impact on Town finances 22-Nov Complete
2023-28 Provide policy options for staff at top of salary grid 22-Nov Complete
2023-39 Sportsfield Classification System - add to policy/procedure 11-Dec Incomplete
2024-01 Update Partners on Website: Re, Uptowne 08-Jan Complete
2024-02 Bring forward further information for disucssion on drought potential 12-Feb Incomplete
2024-03 Council appointment to the Community Futures Central Alberta (CFCA) Board 12-Feb Complete
2024-04 Notice of Motion: Councillor Salary Options 12-Feb Incomplete May 27th Regular Meeting
2024-05 Rotary Park Jump Track Report 12-Feb Incomplete By June 30th 
2024-06 Bring forward high density housing incentive changes 04-Mar Incomplete

Council Action Items 24

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



Start End Start End
1-Feb-24 29-Feb-24 1-Jan-24 29-Feb-24

Type of Problem Number 
Received

Problems 
Closed

Problems 
Open

Number 
Received

Problems 
Closed

Problems 
Open

Bylaw: Animals 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bylaw: Other Enforcement 2 0 2 2 0 2
Bylaw: Parking 4 0 4 5 0 5
Bylaw: Unsightly Property 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ops: Road Issues 5 5 0 12 12 0
Ops: Back Alleys 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ops: Sidewalks 1 1 0 2 2 0
Ops: Utilities & Garbage Collection 1 1 0 4 4 0
Ops: Drainage 9 9 0 17 17 0
Other 1 1 0 4 4 0
P&R: Olds Aquatic Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0
P&R: Sportsplex 1 1 0 1 1 0
P&R: Parks & Trails 2 2 0 2 2 0
Town Administration 0 0 0 0 0 0
Traffic: Speed 2 0 2 2 0 2

Total 28 20 8 51 42 9

February 2024 RAP Summary  2024 Year to Date

25

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



 

Page 1 of 1 

  
Correspondence and Information 

Request for Decision 
 
Correspondence and Information  
 
March 11, 2024   

 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Correspondence and Information Report ending March 11, 2024, be received for information. 
 

STRATEGIC ALIGNMENT 
Our residents and town staff actively communicate and engage with us through open dialogue. 
Our community is supported and enabled through skillful governance. 
Our thriving community is built on strong and collaborative relationships. 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 

Council Communication Response Policy 

BACKGROUND  

The Correspondence and Information Report is a collection of general information received at the Town 
Office and is provided to the Council as information. The council may choose to provide directions to 
Administration on any item contained in this report. 
 
LIST OF CORRESPONDENCE AND INFORMATION PRESENTED: 
 

ITEM # FROM / TO REGARDING 

A Office of the Minister: Ric McIver Intermunicipal Collaboration Frameworks 
(ICFs) Engagement 

 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS   ☐ Operating  ☐ Capital ☒ Not Applicable 
 
KEY MESSAGES 
The Town is dedicated to building and maintaining a reputation as a transparent, authoritative, and 
engaged partner in the community and internally with employees. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. The Correspondence and Information packet is attached. 
 

CAO Review: Brent Williams Date: March 6, 2024 

 
 

26

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024



27

Town of Olds Regular Council Meeting, Monday, March 11, 2024


	2A) 2024 02 26 RC Mtg Minutes - Prior
	3A) RFD Delegation Earl Dreeshen
	5A) RFD - Municipal Area Partnership Dissolution
	5A.1) 20240214 Letter to MAP Committee Members (ID 816824)
	5B) RFD - CotW Policy Recommendations
	5B.1) 107C Elected Official Appointment Policy
	Definitions:

	5B.2) 108C Civic Recognition
	5B.3) 109C Recognition of Departing Elected Officials Policy
	5B.4) 114C Proclamations
	5B.5) 124C Civic Recognition on the Death of a Current or Former Member of Council
	5C) RFD Municipal Policing Priorities
	5C.1) 1 Town of Olds - Request for Policing Priorities - 2024 2025
	5C.2) 2024-03-05 Letter to Staff Sergeant W Wright re Policing Priorities
	6A) RFD CAO Report- Verbal Update
	6A.1) Council Action Items
	Current Items

	6A.2) February RAP Summary
	7A) RFD Correspondence and Information
	7A.1) Minister Letter - ICF Engagement



